# CENTER-TBI

ICU High Resolution data acquisition

Standard of Procedures (SOP) for ICM+

Dr Peter Smielewski (ps10011@cam.ac.uk) Dr Ari Ercole (ae105@cam.ac.uk) Manuel Cabeleira (mc916@cam.ac.uk)

# **Table of Contents**

Summary of the HR ICU data flow using ICM+ system	3
Configuring ICM+ to CENTER-TBI	5
Logging in to ICM+	10
Creation of a new session	12
Using the Events form	14
Creating Data Snapshots	16
Terminating a monitoring session and uploading the data	18
Appendix – Registering ICM+	22
Appendix – The ICM+ Folders	25
Appendix – Updating ICM+ Projects	26
Appendix – Restoring and uploading ICM+ Files	27
Appendix - Monitors Connectors	29
Appendix – Login Passwords	31

## Summary of the HR ICU data flow using ICM+ system

Enrol the patient to the study and acquire a temporary Patient Number from the CENTER-TBI web page.



High Resolution ICU Data flow

At admission (to the study)

1. Connect ICM+ laptop to the medical devices using the appropriate cables. Consult appendix 'Monitors Connectors' for more details about which cables to use for every medical device.

2. Start ICM+ session Refer to chapter 'Creation of a new session' for more information about how to create a new monitoring session in the CENTER-TBI context.

During the data collection

3. Ensure that you take note of as many events as possible through the Event Form. Refer to chapter 'Using the events form' for more information about how to use the event form.

4. At 1-4 hours after the start of the data collection session take a data snapshot in ICM+ and transmit it to Cambridge Refer to chapter 'Creating Data Snapshots' for more information about how to use the snapshot form.

SOP-CENTRE-TBI ICU High Resolution Data collection

Repeat the same process at 12 hours and 24 hours.

At the discharge (from the study)

5. Stop the data analysis on ICM+, package the data and send it to the Cambridge Server. Refer to chapter 'Terminating a monitoring session and uploading the data' for more information about how to terminate the data acquisition.

In due course in Cambridge

6. The data is checked, cleaned and uploaded/registered with the INCF central data base

#### **Configuring ICM+ to CENTER-TBI**

The first time ICM+ is run, some configurations need to be made before the data acquisition process begins. These configurations are made in the Settings menu. This menu can be found by clicking the Home tab and the Settings button.



In the Settings menu you will need to configure several things:

• On the General tab:

			Settings		×
General	Archiving	Display	Analysis	Raw Data Rec	System
CAMB	ch Group/Ce RIDGE	entre iden	tificator		
System	Configuratio	n Folder			
C:\Use	rs\Public\Doo	cuments\X	CM+\syscor	n fig\	Es
User Pl	igins Folder				
C:\Use	rs\Public\Dor	cuments\X	CM+\Plugins	Λ	Es
Default	Configuratio	n Profiles	Folder		
C:\Use	rsManuelDo	cuments	VCM+\Confi	gs/	Es
Default	Data Folder	8			
C:\Use	rs\Manue\Do	cuments)	UCM+\Data\		20
Data Fil	e Name Form	nat			
<proj< td=""><td>ECT&gt; <cen< td=""><td>TRE&gt; «A</td><td>NONYMID&gt;</td><td><date><time></time></date></td><td>同</td></cen<></td></proj<>	ECT> <cen< td=""><td>TRE&gt; «A</td><td>NONYMID&gt;</td><td><date><time></time></date></td><td>同</td></cen<>	TRE> «A	NONYMID>	<date><time></time></date>	同
Remov	e records w	ith NAN v	alues while	exporting to text	fie [
-	ок	X Cance	ei 😵	Keyboard	

• The Research Group/Centre identification will be a unique name in the CENTER-TBI project that will identify the centre. This name should be fully inserted in capitals (ex. CAMBRIDGE).

• The **Data File Name Format** will be used to configure the structure to be used on the construction of the name of each data file. As each file generated in the study must have a unique identifier we agreed in using a structure that uses the format highlighted in the picture. A description on how to build this File Name format is presented further down in this chapter.

			Settings			
General	Archiving	Display	Analysis	Raw Data Re	c System	]
Local an	chiving	<u>.</u>				
Automat	tic Data Arch	iving at th	e recording	session end:	Ask	
Create t	ext info files	for archiv	ved data		ा	-
Delete o	riginal data a	after archi	vina		E.	
Archive	Root Folder	Location				aread
						Ē
Archive	Folder Name	Format				
<proje< td=""><td>CT&gt;_<cent< td=""><td>RE&gt;_<an< td=""><td>ONYMD&gt;_</td><td>DATE&gt;<time></time></td><td></td><td>1001</td></an<></td></cent<></td></proje<>	CT>_ <cent< td=""><td>RE&gt;_<an< td=""><td>ONYMD&gt;_</td><td>DATE&gt;<time></time></td><td></td><td>1001</td></an<></td></cent<>	RE>_ <an< td=""><td>ONYMD&gt;_</td><td>DATE&gt;<time></time></td><td></td><td>1001</td></an<>	ONYMD>_	DATE> <time></time>		1001
						4
Upload t	lo a remote d	estination	1			1
Defe	Destination	(CEN	TED TO:		200	i
Detaut	Destination.	CEN	IER IDI		*	1

• On the Archiving tab:

• The Archive Folder Name Format will follow the same structure as the Data File Name Format.

• The default Destination needs to be set to CENTER-TBI

• On the Raw Data Rec tab:



 $\circ$  The Use 'Start' button to control Raw Signals Recording should be checked if you are an ICM+ only user.

• On the System tab:

			Settings				×
General Ar	chiving	Display	Analysis	Rav	v Data Rec	System	
Auto restor	e sessio	n in progr	ess on star	tup	Enable		~
Auto restar	rt recordi	ng at prog	gram startu	p	Enable	,	~
Inactivity tir	me to sof	tware au	to logout (m	in]	0		
Auto unloci	k prograi	n as user	:		Nurse		~
Operating	System	Policy					
Use this	program	instead o	fWindows	shell	Disable		
Disable lo	ogoff/shu	itdown			Disable		
Disable T	ask Man	ager			Disable		-
Disable lo	ocking th	e compute	er		Disable		/
Disable V	Vindows	passwor	d change		Disable		-
-Windows /	Auto Log	in					
State Dis	able	~ v	Password				וור
User			Confirm				
Patient description encryption Passphrase							
🗸 ок		🗙 Cance	el 🛞	Keyb	oard		

 $\circ$   $\,$  Set the Auto unlock program as user to Nurse.

To build the **Data File Name Format** you will need to click the highlighted button and the following form will appear:

F	File/Folder Name Format Editor	×		
Available Elements	Name Elements			
<centre></centre>	СТВІ		Input form	×
<pre><project> <date> <time> <eidstname></eidstname></time></date></project></pre>	<anonymid></anonymid>		Free Text Element	
<lastname></lastname>	<pre></pre>		Please provide value for this text element	_
<bedid> <patientid></patientid></bedid>	STREET.		СТВІ_	
<anonymid> <guid> <text></text></guid></anonymid>			OK Can	cel
Name Sample				
CTBI_Cambridge_	CAM1234_20150105124302			
🗸 ок	X Cancel			

In this form it is possible to add/remove any name element present in the Available Elements menu.

The '\_' and any additional static text can be inserted by using the element '<text>' and inserting the text to be added manually.

#### Logging in to ICM+

If your ICM+ is correctly configured when the program is run it will automatically initialize with the default user 'Nurse'. There are three ore users already configured in ICM+, the Administrator, the Manager and the Operator.

The **Nurse** is the user that will use the application for longer periods of time and will only have access to a simplified button menu allowing her to efficiently capture relevant events. Refer to the 'How to use the events form' for more details. The default Nurse **Password** is 1414.

In this form you can also find the Login button that you can use to change users. This button is also present in all tabs from the main tool bar.



The **Administrator** is the user that will have full access to the full features of the application.

The **Manager** will have the same privileges but will not be able to manage user accounts.

The **Operator** will only be capable of starting new Recording sessions with available profiles, browsing data, inserting clinical information and display configuration.

When the Login button is pressed, the User login form will appear.

User login for	m	
Current user: Administrator Default user: Nurse		
Default	1 2	3
Other user Name 1 Administrator -	4 5 7 2 8	6
Password	0	Back
V OK		

In this form you will find:

- 1. A button to the Default user and a button to lock the application so that nothing but the login button is accessible.
- 2. A key pad to insert the Password for a given user
- 3. And a Drop-Down menu to select the user to Login as.

#### Creation of a new session



To create a new data acquisition session hit the ICM+ button and select New.

This will bring up a new form:

		New Dat	a Acquisition Se	ssion Form		×
	Project : Data File	Generic Generic Traumatic Brain Injury CENTER-TBI			×	New Project
	Patient's in First Nar Surnam Hospital Room/Br	nformation me Middle e ID other dNo	Initial Date Date Ger	e Of Birth e Of Ictus e Of Admission nder	22/12/2014	00:00 © 00:00 © 00:00 ©
1	Clinical	sed ID background	2			
	C:WsersW C:stomi	isition/ánalysis Configuration Profile anueNDocumentsIICM+IConfigs/Profile - lcp se the profile	abp licox.icmc	ces 💽 On	Line Analysis	
	✓ 0	K Cancel 😥 Keybo	ard			

- You can insert the Patient information manually by using the fields presented in this form, or if you have already inserted these values on the bed-side monitor you can just import those using the button 'Retrieve Demographics from...' to use this button you will need to have already selected the profile you will be using in this data acquisition session.
- 2. This is the only field of the Patient Demographics that **you will always have to insert**. This is the anonymised ID that you will get from the CENTER-TBI website. If you don't have the **GUPI** (Global Unique Patient Identifier) use the temporary identifier. Unless you insert this number you will not be able to start a new session.
- 3. This button will open the folder where you have all the profiles that you can use for this data acquisition session. The pane just beside this button will provide a faster way to select the most used profiles.
- 4. Before starting a new session please ensure that the project is set to CENTER-TBI.
- 5. It is very important that you fill in the Date of Birth, Date of Ictus and the Date of Admission (if possible the hour and minutes too) as it will be important in the analysis part of the CENTER-TBI project. This is especially important for paediatric and new-born patients.

If for any chance you need to tweak the profiles, please **don't overwrite** the ones provided. If you don't have experience with creating or altering profiles please contact us and we will be happy to help you. These profiles should only be used for the CENTER-TBI project.

As you are aware there is a minimum set of signals that we will be requiring from every patient on the study:

- ICP at a sampling rate of at least 100 Hz,
- ABP at a sampling rate of at least 100 Hz,
- ECG at a sampling rate of at least 200 Hz,
- Any core temperature at a sampling rate of at least 100 Hz

If you have at your disposition any more sources of signal you can also insert them in the profile (ex. Lycox, Microdialysis, etc.).

This version of ICM+ is compatible with the profiles of the older versions.

Don't be afraid of inserting patient demographics in this section as it will not be transferred to the HDF5 file that you will be uploading to Cambridge and it will be highly encrypted in the ICM+ file.

#### **Using the Events form**

As soon as the acquisition of data starts a new form will pop-up and in this chapter we will discuss the function of the first button of this new form.



Clicking this button will bring up another form called Event Window.



This form is composed by 9 buttons, each representing a different event that can occur during the data acquisition process. This form is meant to be used by the nurses and every time the patient is intervened the nurse should press the button that most resembles the occurrence. By pressing one of these buttons, a new form will come up:

🙊 Confirm Event 🗕 🗖 🗙
BP Decrease inotrope / vasoconstrictor
Event Time:
13:01:44
23/12/2014 🛛 🖛
Comments:
Confirm Cancel
Auto dose in 289s

This form will present the nurse with a summary of the selected event and if everything is correct the confirm button needs to be pressed in order to send the event to our servers. This from will allow the user to edit the time of the occurrence if something prevented the nurse press the button immediately after the event occurred. It is also possible to add a comment to the event if something relevant should be said about it.

If the event is not confirmed during a given time window it will automatically confirm, but this scenario should be avoided as much as possible.

After the confirmation or cancelation of an event this window will close and the Event Window will pop-up again.

The event window can always be closed if, for example, the doctor needs to browse through the application to look at the signals and calculated indexes. If the auto hide check box is ticked, the Event Window will not reappear automatically. If the box is not ticked, the window will reappear automatically after one minute of inactivity.

#### **Creating Data Snapshots**

During the data acquisition process, data snapshots should be taken periodically and uploaded to our servers for confirmation of the validity of the acquired data. These snapshots should be taken after the first hour of acquisition, again after 6 hours and at least once every day afterwards. The Data Snapshot button can be found on the Data tab on the control panel section.



After the button is pressed a new HDF5 file is generated and a window called Packing data into an HDF5 file is presented. This window shows the file creation procedure. Once finished and the button ok is clicked

Packaging data into an HDF5 file	×
Converting C: \Users\Manuel\Documents\ICM+\Data\ABP,ICP, Lycox- long term TBI.icmp Started at 18:00:50 Duration: 00:00:00 All done Converting C: \Users\Manuel\Documents\ICM+\Data\ABP,ICP, Lycox- long term TBI.icmp Started at 18:00:50 Finished at 18:00:50 Duration: 00:00:00	<
СК	

After confirming that the file is to be uploaded a new form is presented:

<b>R</b>	SE	IP file transf	er to dirac.n	eurosurg.can	n.ac.uk		
Select Files	Destination	CENTER TEL	*				
Piles selected: C: Users Manuel/Docume Initiating SSH connection File opened, transmitting SFTP client connected Remote folder Upload op	ents (JCM + (Data (ABP, 1 total of 1609 kb ened	CP, Lycax-long	term TBI_snapsh	ot∰20141227#1	80050.hdf5		
			26%				
Elapsed time: 00.0	00:04 Estima	ted time left:	00:00:15	Inst. Rate:	78.30 [KB/s]	Cum. Rate:	80.69 [KB/s
X Abort			glose				
Abort			Dose				

In the dropdown menu called destination, the option CENTER TBI must be selected. After this the button upload can be pressed and the file is uploaded to our servers.

# Terminating a monitoring session and uploading the data

When the data acquisition process is finished the recording session can be closed using the Close button present in the ICM+ button. This will initialize a cascade of forms that will eventually lead to the sealing of the file and subsequent upload of the generated HDF5 file to Cambridge servers.

Closing a session is different from closing the program. To close the ICM+ application you need to press the red cross present on the upside corner of the right side of the screen. If ICM+ is closed using this button or if the computer shuts down, the next time it is run, the recording session will be resumed with the same configurations it had at the moment of shutdown.



When this button is pressed a dialogue is presented prompting the user to confirm the closure of the recording session:



After confirming the end of the recording session another dialogue is presented prompting the user to package the data into a single file:



After confirming this dialogue the Data Packaging Form is presented, here the user must confirm the names of the files to be used in the creation of the HDF5 file. The user should confirm the monitor type used in the unit in the highlighted drop-down menu and tick the Unidentify checkbox.

R	Data Packaging Form	×
✓ Include trend data		
Main ICM+ file		
C: \Users\Manuel\Documents\ICM	+\Data\CTBI_20141202171342_MANUELPC.kmp	2
✓ Include raw data (waveforms)	Main patient monitor type Solar	~
Raw data source		
C: \Users\Manuel\Documents\ICM+	+'Data\CTBI_20141202171342_MANUELPC_r1.dta	<b>E</b>
Unidentify  Unidentify Output file name		
C: Users Manuel Documents (CM-	+\Data\CTBI_20141202171342_MANUELPC.hdf5	1
✓ ОК Хала	cel	

After confirming another window will be presented showing all the steps of the creation of the HDF5 file:

Packaging data into an HDF5 file	×
Converting C: Users/Wanuel/Documents/LCM+/Data/CTBI_20141202171342_MANUELPC_r1.dta Started at 19:14:14 Total number of samples: 1947500 Signals included: art.(cp.pbto2,spo2 Processing definitions All done Enrished at 19:14:15 Duration: 00:00:01 All done Converting C: (Users/Wanuel/Documents/LCM+/Data/CTBI_20141202171342_MANUELPC.icmp Started at 19:14:15 Finished at 19:14:15 Duration: 00:00:00	< >
<b>↓</b> ok	

When the file is successfully created another dialogue will show up prompting the user to archive, upload or leave that for later. The user should hit the upload button in order to send the file to the server back in Cambridge to be validated and inserted in the main database. Please ensure that the internet connection the computer running OCM+ is using is capable of uploading files with huge dimensions (ex. 3G Wi-Fi is not a good connection to upload this file due to the amount of traffic it will consume).



By hitting upload one final form will be presented:

	Construction of the second		and the second second	Concernance of the second		and the second second
Select Files	Destination C	ENTER TBI				
Uploading file ABP, ICF	, Lycox- long term T	BL_snapshot@20141227#1	180050.hdf5			
C: Users'Manuel'Docume Initiating SSH connection File opened, transmitting SFTP client connected Remote folder Upload op	ents/\$CM+\Data\A8P,1Ci total of 1609 kb ened	P, Lycox-long term TBI_snapsh	ot@20141227#18	0050.hdf5		
		26%				
Elapsed time: 00 t	00:04 Estimate	26% ed time left: 00:00:15	Inst. Rate:	78.30 [KB/s]	Cum. Rate:	80.69 [KB/s]
Elapsed time: 00 1	00:04 Estimate	26% ed time left: 00:00:15	Inst. Rate:	78.30 [KB/s]	Cum. Rate:	80.69 [KB/s]
Elapsed time: 00:	00:04 Estimate	26% ed time left: 00:00:15	inst. Rate:	78.30 [KB/s]	Cum. Rate:	80.69 [KB/s]

Here the user should ensure that the destination is CENTER TBI and should hit the Upload button.

On the Data Upload Query form, if the internet connection at the moment of the closing of the recording session will not permit the upload, the button Archive can be pressed instead. This will bring forth the following form.

9	DataArchiveDlg	- 🗆 🗙
Use settings from the project:	CENTER-TBI ¥	
Data storage details		
Data Archive Folder		
C: \Users \Manuel \Docume	nts\CENTER-TBI\	4 <u>-</u>
Create New Subfolder	Use original file name for the subfolder	
CAMBRIDGE_1899123000	0000	
Create info text file		
Operation		
ОСору	Move	
V OK X Cancel	Remember Selection	

In this form you can move or copy the file to a specified folder to be uploaded later by the application Manager or Administrator.

#### **Appendix – Registering ICM+**

When ICM+ is successfully installed for the first time in a computer it needs to be registered. This will probably already be done for you when you get the laptops, but if any major update needs to be done you will have to register it again.

To register ICM+ you need to press the Registration button on the Home tab.



This will bring up the Detailed ICM+ License Info window where you will need to press the Register New Key button.



This will bring forth the ICM+ Registration Form and here you will have to press the Copy Details.

nstallCode:	Please quote this code for an 485ACBC6D289	y further assistance
Username:	ICMadmin	
Institution:	Institution Name	
Computer:	CTBI-Copenh2	
	Copy Details	🔚 Email Details
Register Nov	e registration key, then press t	he [Register] button

This will let you paste the details anywhere you want. You will then have email those details to Dr Peter Smielewski (<u>ps10011@cam.ac.uk</u>) or Manuel Cabeleira (<u>mc916@cam.ac.uk</u>) so that we can generate your product key and send it to you.

You will then have to paste the Key to the highlighted space and click Register now. If you are successful you will see the Registration successful dialogue.

ICM+	×
Registration was sucessful	
	ОК

And your Detailed ICM+ License Info window should look like this:

icini + Registi attori status		<b></b>	3rd Party Plugins	
Registered To: ICMadmin		T		
Institution:				
Registration Valid Until: 31/12/2016				
Registered Features				
Data Acquisition And Real-time Analysis	1			
Customisable Analysis Configuration	1			
Raw Signals Recording	1			
Off-line Analysis of Raw Signals	1			
CSF Dynamics Tools	1			
Cerebrovascular Reactivity Tools	1			
🍰 Register New Key				
Installed Monitor Modules				
imulator				

#### **Appendix – The ICM+ Folders**

ICM+ will use sets of folders to store files needed for the good functioning of the program.

The first set of folders is present on C:\Users\CENTER-TBI\Documents\ICM+. Here, in the **Data** folder is where all the data being generated during the acquisition process is stored. The **Conigs** folder is used to store the files containing the profiles that are selected at the beginning if the Data acquisition.

The other set of folders is located on **C:\Users\Public\Documents\ICM+** and here is where all the environment configurations are stored. Here you will find a folder called **Plugins** where all the equipment drivers are located.

The folder **sysconfig** will contain files that will be read when the application is run and should be left untouched by everybody but the **Administrator**. Inside this folder you will find the **CustomForms** folder that will contain the initialization file for the event form. The **SFTP** will contain the files that indicate to ICM+ where to send the data when uploading. Here you can also find files containing information about available projects in the **projects.xml** file and events in the **events.xml** file. The file **users** stores information about the credentials of ICM+ users.

#### **Appendix – Updating ICM+ Projects**

If by the project file needs to be updated the **Administrator** needs to access the button project present on the Home tab of the Main Task-bar.



By clicking this button you will open the Project Management dialogue. Here you can press the Import button and select the file provided by us. This will automatically update the project list. Here you can also create, copy, Edit, Delete or Export projects.

Project Management					
	Name	Abbreviation	Description		
🛉 <u>N</u> ew	Traumatic Brain Injury	тві			
📄 <u>С</u> ору	CENTER-TBI	СТВІ			
🗂 <u>E</u> dit					
📟 <u>D</u> elete					
🛃 Import					
💾 Export					
и ок					

#### **Appendix – Restoring and uploading ICM+ Files**

If a session was for some reason closed an a recording needs to be restored again the button open can be pressed.



The dialog that opens can be used to reopen the file in order to upload the data to our servers or to restore the recording session.

<b>.</b>	File Open Dialog				>
Type 🛃 🔯 🍸 ICM+ main data file 🗸 🗸	G:\Users\Manuel\Documents\ICM+\Data				v 35
Browse for File					
Documents     ANNO 1404 Venice     ANNO 1404 Venice     Anno 1404 Venice     Anno 1404 Venice     Content of the optimise     Content of the optimise	Name           CTBL20150106153222_MANUELPC.icmp           CTBL20150106153222_MANUELPC.icmp           CTBL20150106153222_113420_MANUELPC.icmp           CTBL2015171342_MANUELPC.icmp           CTBL20141202161422_MANUELPC.icmp           CTBL20141202161422_MANUELPC.icmp           ABP/CP_CONSet term TBL20161422_MANUELPC.icmp           ABP/CP_CONSet term TBL2016122_MANUELPC.icmp           ABP/CP_CONSet term TBL201612_MANUELPC.icmp           ABP/CP_COBF-Hemedex, TBL000	Size 40 KB 30 KB 1,314 KB 25 KB 73 KB 47 KB 838 KB 179 KB	Item type ICM+ data file ICM+ data file	Date modified 07/01/2015 00:28:47 06/01/2015 00:28:47 27/12/2014 19:25 08 27/12/2014 19:25 08 19/12/2014 12:23 01 02/12/2014 12:23 01 02/12/2014 12:23 01 10/11/2014 12:25 42 10/11/2014 09:47:30	
Integration Service     League of Legend:					
C:Users/Manuel/Documents/CM+Upata/CT8L_20150 - Events, Size: 4706 - Notebook, Size: 06 - Clinicabats, Size: 26 - PatientDescr, Size: 780 - RavOata	106153922_MANUELPC.kmp				ŕ
PatientDescr Name=					
MidInitial= Surname= HospitalNo= AnonymizedID=123 DateOfBirth=06/01/2015 Sex=Male		Û			
🔗 Open for browsing 🔀 Reanalyse rat	w data 🔿 Open <u>n</u> ew window 🕅 🕅	estart recording	هي 🔇	incel	

To reopen a file for inspection or to upload it is only necessary to double-click the desired file.

To restore the recording session, the highlighted button must be pressed and the recording resumes using the same profile as when it was closed.

To manually upload a file the button Upload Data can be pressed. This button is located on the Tools tab of the main task-bar. The upload procedure is the same as the one described in the document body.

××.	Home	Charts	Data	Tools				
۵		JJJ				1	Ę	
Login	Minimise Ribbon	Tests	Signal Calculato	Artefao r Edito	cts r	Package Data	Upload Data	Archive Data
			Data To	ols		Ar	chive Too	ols

#### **Appendix - Monitors Connectors**

#### **Philips Intellivue**

USB-to-Serial adapter connected to the computer

Monitor requires a cable with RJ45 (network type) connector at one end and a male DSub 9 connector (RS232) at the other:









**MX** Series

The MIB/RS232 interface provides a RS232 port with the following pin assignment. This table is valid when the MIB/RS232 Interface is in DCC mode (DCC LED on the MIB/RS232 board is on).

Computer Client	Pin and Signal Direction	IntelliVue monitor
	1<=	dDPWR
GND	4 <=>	GND
RxD	5 <=	TxD
TxD	7 =>	RxD

The pins of the RJ45 are counted from 1 for the lowest pin to 8 for the highest pin when looking at the RS232/MIB interface board.

The configuration of a specific MIB/RS232 port can be viewed in config mode and altered in service mode. To alter the configuration of an MIB port select **Main Setup** then **Hardware** then **Interfaces.** This brings up the MIB/RS232 card configuration. The port that you are using must be set to DtOut1 for the "Data Out" function. If the MIB/RS232 port is configured for data export the yellow arrow out LED will be lit.



**MX800**: Cable shown connecting the MIB/RS232 port on the Intellilvue monitor and the internal PC USB port, using a USB-Serial adapter.

## GE Datex Ohmeda S/5

USB-to-Serial adapter connected to the computer

Standard null modem serial cable connecting the monitor (fig below) and the USB-to-Serial adapters



#### GE Carescape B 650/850

USB-to-Serial adapter connected to the computer

Standard null modem serial cable connecting the two USB-to-Serial adapters

ATEN UC-232A USB-to-Serial adapter connected to any USB ports on the Carescape monitor



#### **Appendix – Login Passwords**

In this section you will find all the passwords that should only be known by the Administrator, Manager and Operator. Please detach this appendix from the main document.

Administrator – 2718

Manager – 1618

Operator - 3142

Nurse - 1414